Town of Sullivan
Zoning Board of Adjustment
Continuation of Public Meeting
for G2 Holdings Special Exceptions
June 10, 2025, 7 pm

Present: Aimee Fador, Laura Lewandowski, Stephen Parker, Brad Smith, Bob Switzer,
BJ Wahl, Clerk; Ariane Ice, attorney for G2 Holdings; about 2 dozen Sullivan residents

+ The meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm and the Board was introduced.

« The minutes for the G2 meeting of April 15th were approved.

+ The minutes for the Huddleston meeting of May 30th were approved.

+ The Board came out of deliberations and into a public meeting.

+ Ariane Ice, attorney for the applicant, explained to the Board that at the last meeting,
the Board had wanted to continue the hearing until after the Keene Planning Board
had voted at their July 28th meeting, so that G2 has asked for a continuation to
August. They would also like to supplement their application with additional
information.

+ Bob asked what the new information would be. Attorney Ice replied that there would
be additional engineering information and reports and possibly more testimony.

+ Bob explained to the public that G2’s application involves 2 separate and different
projects. Project 1 involves the multi-year expansion of the Keene pit into Sullivan.
Project 2 involves an existing pit in Sullivan that needs to be reclaimed. He asked if
the new information would be in regards to Project 1 or 2. Attorney Ice was not sure
about that.

+ Bob asked about the several missing forms and documents for Project 2, in regards
to timber cutting and gravel extraction. Cody Gordon had said that some of those
had been given to the town but the town never received them. There are both
missing state forms and town forms. Attorney Ice was not aware of these issues, nor
was the timber agent. She will check with the applicant about this.

+ Attorney Ice explained that the Planning Board will get into the nuts and bolts of the
projects and that all the ZBA needed to be concerned about is the criteria for a
Special Exception and whether the land is an acceptable site for the proposed use.
Everything else is the Planning Board’s concern.

+ Brad stated that we need to trust the applicant in order to grant a Special Exception.
Credibility needs to be built up by delivering on the required forms. Things have not
proceeded according to the rules and there are missing documents. Attorney Ice
agreed that this is important but was not relevant to whether a portion of the
applicant’s land can be used for a gravel operation. That should be the ZBA’s only
concern.

+ Aimee asked if Attorney Ice could explain the specifics of what is involved with
Project 2. Attorney Ice said that she could not, and that the meeting was continued
because the ZBA wanted to wait until after the Keene Planning Board meeting and
that it would be improper and unheard of not to grant the continuation.



+ Laura said that we can’t go forward without the forms that were not filed. Attorney Ice
replied that she would look into that. Bob explained again about the lack of the
timber cutting and the gravel extraction forms. But the forms would be a Select
Board’s function, not the ZBA’s. She feels that the Select Board needs to formally
request these forms.

+ Bob asked if we can split the 2 projects into separate issues. If conditions are met,
then Project 2, the reclamation of the existing pit in Sullivan, could go forward.
Attorney Ice is not sure if the applicant would want to split the projects so she
couldn’t give that permission until she speaks to the applicants, and so she would
like a continuation on both projects.

+ Stephen wondered how we could proceed since G2 had not filed any paperwork for
Project 2. They were never legally granted permission to proceed. Attorney Ice said
that this is not in the ZBA’s purview, and more for the Planning Board. Their initial
violation has no direct bearing on this hearing. The applicant is seeking due process
and the right for everyone to have all of the information they need to make a decision.

+ Bob made a motion, seconded by Laura, that the Board vote in favor of granting the
continuation. The motion passed with 4 ayes and 1 nay.

+ The meeting was opened up for public comment. Gloria Bimonte spoke in regards to
the missing documentation. She asked if an Environmental Impact Study had been
done. It was explained that that would be in the Planning Board’s purview.

+ Wendy Pelletier, Planning Board Chair, explained that the ZBA would vote on the
application based on specific criteria only, and explained how this differed from the
Planning Board’s role, which would go into the details and site specifics. She said
that the town has hired an engineering firm, Wilcox and Barton, to assist us in
evaluating the complex plans that Granite Engineering has presented. Their fees will
be paid by the applicant, not the town. Wilcox and Barton will review all of the
submissions and advise us on how to proceed.

+ Jim Manley asked if there was also a current use violation involving Project 2. Bob
replied that there was. Jim wondered why the Planning Board was involved if the
Zoning Board hadn’t made a decision yet. He asked if the desired outcome of the
continued meeting would be for both Boards to vote on the applications. Bob replied
that as long as we had all of the documents, that may be the outcome. Attorney Ice
asked why the ZBA had to vote first. Wendy said that the Planning Board could
actually rule first, but that both boards need all of the information prior to making any
decisions.

* It was agreed to continue the meeting to September 3rd at 7 pm in the Sullivan Town
Hall. It was also agreed that this would be a joint meeting with Sullivan’s Planning
Board. Bob made this a motion, seconded by Stephen. All aye.

« Bob moved that the meeting be adjourned, seconded by Stephen. All aye. The
meeting was adjourned at 7:40 pm, to be continued on September 3rd, time and
place certain.

Submitted by
BJ Wahl, Clerk



